
 
 
 
 

 
Telephone: 0151 529 2355/ 0151 706 3149 

Email: FOIRequests@liverpoolft.nhs.uk 
 

12 December 2019 
Our Ref: MW/AW/FOI6643       
 
 
 
Dear Applicant, 
 
Freedom of Information Act 2000 – Request for Information Reference: 6643 
 

Further to your request for information received 25 November 2019 please find the Trust’s 
response below. 
 
On 1st October 2019, Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust was created, 
through the merger of Aintree University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and Royal 
Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust. Therefore, this response is for 
all sites. 
 
Response from Aintree University Hospital: 
 
Please answer the below questions:  
1. Is the catering, retail catering and/or patient dining services on site out-sourced to any 
third-party soft facilities providers?  

 All in house  
 

2. If so, please name the external supplier that provides these services, along with the 
contract start/end date?  

 Not applicable 
 
3. Are the vending services on site managed by an external operated vending provider?  

 Yes 
 
4. If so, please provide details of the supplier of vending services along with details of 
contract start/end date.  

 Food, confectionary & hot drinks provided by Refreshment Systems LTD (RSL). 
Contract awarded August 2019 for a period of five years. 
Soft beverages are provided by Selecta on an interim basis before the Trust puts 
this contract out to tender. 
 

5. Are all products provided through the vending machines fully compliant with CQUIN 
guidelines?   

 Yes 
 

6. Please provide a planogram of products currently for sale in the snack and cold drinks 
vending machines within the trust.  

 The planogram of products is currently under review.  
 
7. Does the Trust use a ward beverage trolley service to serve hot beverages to in-patients 
throughout the trust?  

 Yes 
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8. If so, please provide details of the number of ward beverage trolleys on site along with 
details of the equipment provider and any contractual obligations currently in place 
including contract start/end date?   

 42 trolleys, supplied by Selecta 
 
9. What department within the trust manages the above contracts and who within the trust 
is the key point of contact for the above contracts?   

 The Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust must take a balanced 
view of an individual's right to confidentiality versus the public interest in releasing 
any information that would identify them. 

The Trust has a legal responsibility to balance confidentiality with public interest, and 
on this occasion, as the details requested relate to a role in which the post holder’s 
information is not already in the public domain, the Trust has concluded there is no 
public interest in the information requested being released.  
This information is therefore being withheld under Section 40(2) of the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000 on the grounds that it is personal information. 

 
If you wish to contact a member of staff please send your correspondence to 
FOIRequests@liverpoolft.nhs.uk and your email will be forwarded onto the relevant 
department/staff member. 

 
Alternatively you can visit the Trust’s webpage for contact details 
https://www.rlbuht.nhs.uk/contact-us/  
http://www.aintreehospital.nhs.uk/contact-us/  

 
Please also provide:  
10. The total number of vending machines currently on trust grounds split between 
specification of snacks, cold drinks, snack/cold drinks combi and hot beverages. 

 Snacks - 4 vending machines 
Combi - 3 vending machines 
Cold drinks - 17 vending machines  
Hot drinks - 5 vending machines 

 
11. The amount of NET revenue generated through the vending machines in the financial 
year 2018/19.  

 The NET revenue is not collected by the Trust. The contractors collect the money 
from the vending machines and pay the Trust with the royalties/ rebate. 

 
12. The amount of rebate paid back to the trust as a result of vending machine sales in the 
financial year 2018/19.  

 £32,165 
 
13. The amount of NET revenue generated through the vending machines in the financial 
year 2017/18.  

 The NET revenue is not collected by the Trust. The contractors collect the money 
from the vending machines and pay the Trust with the royalties/ rebate. 

 
14. The amount of rebate paid back to the trust as a result of vending machine sales in the 
financial year 2017/18. 

 £31,382 
 
15. Total rebate paid back to trust as a result of vending sales in the past five years.  

 £162,640.68 
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Response from Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospitals: 
 
1. Is the catering, retail catering and/or patient dining services on site out-sourced to any 

third-party soft facilities providers?  

 Yes 
 
2. If so, please name the external supplier that provides these services, along with the 

contract start/end date?  

 The patient catering services and some of the retail catering is provided by ISS 
Healthcare.  
The current contract commenced in April 2016 and runs until March 2023. 
 

3. Are the vending services on site managed by an external operated vending provider?  

 Yes 
 

4. If so, please provide details of the supplier of vending services along with details of 
contract start/end date.  
 The vending services form part of the overall catering contract as outlined above. 

 
5. Are all products provided through the vending machines fully compliant with CQUIN 

guidelines?   

 Yes 
 
6. Please provide a planogram of products currently for sale in the snack and cold drinks 

vending machines within the trust.  

 Please see the attached (RLH – Q6) 
 

7. Does the Trust use a ward beverage trolley service to serve hot beverages to in-
patients throughout the trust?  

 Yes 
 
8. If so, please provide details of the number of ward beverage trolleys on site along with 

details of the equipment provider and any contractual obligations currently in place 
including contract start/end date?   

 The ward beverage service form part of the overall catering contract as outlined 
above, with trollies being provided for each individual ward. 

 
9. What department within the trust manages the above contracts and who within the trust 

is the key point of contact for the above contracts?   

 The Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust must take a balanced 
view of an individual's right to confidentiality versus the public interest in releasing 
any information that would identify them. 
The Trust has a legal responsibility to balance confidentiality with public interest, 
and on this occasion, as the details requested relate to a role in which the post 
holder’s information is not already in the public domain, the Trust has concluded 
there is no public interest in the information requested being released.  
This information is therefore being withheld under Section 40(2) of the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000 on the grounds that it is personal information. 

 
If you wish to contact a member of staff please send your correspondence to 
FOIRequests@liverpoolft.nhs.uk and your email will be forwarded onto the relevant 
department/staff member. 

 
Alternatively you can visit the Trust’s webpage for contact details: 
https://www.rlbuht.nhs.uk/contact-us/  
http://www.aintreehospital.nhs.uk/contact-us/  
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Please also provide:  
10. The total number of vending machines currently on trust grounds split between 

specification of snacks, cold drinks, snack/cold drinks combi and hot beverages. 

 There are currently 15 vending machines located in various parts of the hospital. 
The split being 5 drink vendors and 10 snack vendors. 

 
11. The amount of NET revenue generated through the vending machines in the financial 

year 2018/19.  

 The Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen do not receive any direct income from vending 
machines. 

 
12. The amount of rebate paid back to the trust as a result of vending machine sales in the 

financial year 2018/19.  

 The Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen does not receive any rebate as a result of 
vending machine sales 

 
13. The amount of NET revenue generated through the vending machines in the financial 

year 2017/18.  

 The Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen does not receive any direct income from 
vending machines. 
 

14. The amount of rebate paid back to the trust as a result of vending machine sales in the 
financial year 2017/18. 

 The Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen does not receive any rebate as a result of 
vending machine sales 

 
15. Total rebate paid back to trust as a result of vending sales in the past five years.  

 The Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen does not receive any rebate as a result of 
vending machine sales 

 
If you have any queries about this response or wish to discuss your request further please 
contact the Freedom of Information Team.  
 
Right to Review 
 
If you are dissatisfied with the handling of your request you have the right to ask for an 
internal review. 
To do this, please email FOIRequests@liverpoolft.nhs.uk and quote the reference number 
above. 
 
If you are not content with the outcome of the internal review, you may apply directly to the 
Information Commissioner for a decision. Generally, the ICO cannot make a decision 
unless you have exhausted the complaints procedure provided by the Trust. The 
Information Commissioner can be contacted at: The Information Commissioner’s Office, 
Wycliffe House, Water Lane, Wilmslow, Cheshire SK9 5AF. 
 
Kind Regards 
 
Freedom of Information Team 
Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
FOIRequests@liverpoolft.nhs.uk 
 
 
Please note that any individuals identified do not give consent for their personal data to be 
processed for the purposes of direct marketing.  
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Liverpool University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust is a public sector body and governed 
by EU law. FOI requestors should note that any new Trust requirements over the EU 
threshold will be subject to these regulations and will be advertised for open competition 
accordingly. 
 

Re-use of Public Sector Information 
 

Where the Trust owns the copyright in information provided, you may re-use the 
information in line with the conditions set out in the Open Government Licence v3 which is 
available at http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/. 
Where information was created by third parties, you should contact them directly for 
permission to re-use the information. 

http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/

